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Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

We have performed the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) of the Pine Grove Area School District for the year ended June 30, 2023.
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) indicates
that the auditee is responsible for ensuring appropriate submission of the audit reports to
appropriate government officials.

The reporting packages must be no later than nine months after the year end (March 31,
2024).

The Single Audit was done to fulfill the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). lt entailed: (1) an audit of the
general purpose financial statements and our opinion thereon; (2) an examination of the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and our opinion thereon; (3) a review of the
internal control structure based solely on the understanding obtained as part of the audit of
the general purpose financial statements; (4) a review of the internal control structure made
as a part of the audit of the federal financial assistance programs; (5) a review of compliance
based on an audit of the general purpose financial statements in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and (6) a review of compliance with laws and regulations
related to the federal financial assistance programs and our opinion thereon.

As part of our report, we have enclosed a management letter for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.

When filing the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform

Guidance) and the Data Collection Form with the agencies listed on Page 2, the District must
enclose the appropriate number of reports as listed.

a {-, /- <--'

J uary 31 ,2024

I

Pottsville Pennsylvan ia



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

LIST OF REPORT DISTRIBUTION

JUNE 30,2023

1 Single Audit RePort

1 Single Audit RePort

1 Certified Copy of
Data Collection Form
Single Audit Clearing
Package Checklist, FAC's
Confirmation email

1 Single Audit Report and
Data Collection Form

Schuylkill lntermediate Unit #29
Marlin, PA 17951

Prothonotary Office
Schuylkill County Courthouse
Pottsville, PA 17901

Must be submitted Via Electronic Mail (E-mail)
Commonwealth of PennsYlvania
Office of the Budget - Bureau of Audits,
Special Audit Services Division

RA-BAFMSi nq leAud it@Pa. qov

Federal Audit Clearing House
Via lnternet Website
www.fac.gov
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstypeactivities, each major.fund, and the aggregate remaining fund iriformation of ttre iine Grove Area schoolDistrict, as of and for the year ended June 50, 2023, and[he related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic financial statements as listed in the tableof contents.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, therespective financial position of the governmental activities, the businesr-ti$ 
""iiuiii"r, 

each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Pine Grove nrea Schoot oistiict, as of June g0,2023,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereot for the year tnenended in accordance with accounting principles generally aciepted in ine Uniteo States of America.
Basrs for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contiined in'Goveinment nuditing Standaids,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards arefurther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of ourreport. We are required.to be independent of Pine Grove Area School District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appiopriate to provid6 a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsib i I iti es of M a n a g e m e nt fo r th e F i n a n c i a I state m e nts
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements inaccordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for thedesign, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fairpresentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whetheidue to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responslb ility for the Audit of the Financiatsfafemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includesour opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not_ a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance witfr gen-ially accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material [risstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
grror' as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrefiresentations, or the overiide of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financijl
statements.
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ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing

Sfandards, we:

. Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Pine Grove Area School District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion

is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that raise substantial doubt about the Pine Grove Area School District's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters

that we identified during the audit.

Req u i red S upplem entary I nform ation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 10-23 and the schedule of the

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of the District's contributions, the

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB-PSERS liability, the schedule of the District's contributions -

OpEB-pSERS, the schedule of the District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability and the schedule of

District contributions - OPEB on pages 83-88 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibiLity of management and, although not a part of the basic financial

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing

the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not

provide us with sutficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

S upplemental I nform ati on

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining

and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as

required by Title 2 U.S: Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,

Cost prin6iples, and Audit Requirements for Federat Awards, are presented for purpose of additional

analysis and are not required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility

of m'anagement and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records

used to-prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing

procedures dpplied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting a.nd other records used

to pl.epar:e the basic finJncial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other

aOOitional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. ln our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule

of expenditures of fedeial awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the

basic 1nancial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based

on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information

exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sfandards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,

2024, on our consideration of the Pine Grove Area School District's internal control over financial reporting

and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion

on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Pine Grove Area School

District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

+e./-c
ry 31,2024

Pottsville, Pennsylvania
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STA/VDARDS

Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issyed by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the g6vernmental
activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund i-nformation of
the Pine Grove Area School District, as of and for the year ended June-3o, 2023, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic 1nancial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31,2024.

Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Pine Grove Area School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the pine Grove Area Schooi
District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the pine Grove
Area School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 6orrect,
misstatements on a timely basis. A materialweakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that ls less sever6 than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might-be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknessei
may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Pine Grove Area School District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

6



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Sfandards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

+4. /,

J 31,2024
Pottsville, Pennsylvania
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Pine Grove Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Pine Grove Area School District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The
Pine Grove Area School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

ln our opinion, the Pine Grove Area School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basrs for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Pine Grove Area School District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Pine Grove Area School District's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Pine Grove Area
School District's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Pine

Grove Area School District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Sfandards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from

fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Pine Grove Area School
District's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

8



ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment Auditing

Sfandards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit'

o ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,

evidence ,"g":rding ih"-Fin" brou" Area school District's compliance with the. compliance require.ments

referred to abovJ and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

. obtain an understanding of the pine Grove Area school District's internal control over compliance

relevant to tne audit in jrOer to design audit procedures that are appropriate. in the circumstances and

to test anO report on internal control6ver comptiance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not

for the purpor"'oi""pr"riing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pine Grove Area school District's

internal control over compliaice. Aicordingly, no such opinion is expressed'

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and any signfi;ant defici-encies and maierialweaknesses in internalcontrol

over compliance that we identified during the audit'

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which.are required to be reported.

in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs as it; 2003-01. our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to

this matter.

Government Auditing sfandards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Pine Grove Area

school District,s 
'".po*L 

io tt" noncomptianCe findingi identified in our compliance audit described in the

"."orp"nving 
scnedule ol findings and questioned costi. The Pine Grove Area school District's response was

not subjected to the oir.rli 
"uoiiin-g 

procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express

no opinion on the response.

Report on lnternal Gontrol over Gompliance

A deficiency in internat control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
.a 

control over compliance

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,

or detect and correct, noncomptiince with 
" 

iyp" of compliance iequirement of a federal program on a timely

basis. A materia! weakness in'interna! controt over compliance is a deficiencY, 9r a combination of deficiencies'

in internal control ovei comptiance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with

a type of comptianc"'r"qrii"r"ntbi " 
teagrai program.will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a

timety basis , n signirii;;i ieticiency in internit clontrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over complian." *ifi't a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that

is less severe tnan a'material weakneis in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit

attention by those charged with governance'

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for. the limited purpose described in the Auditor's

Responsibitities for tne Audit of complian"e i"ttion above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in

internal control ou", .orpri"n." n"t migtrt oe material weaknesses or significbnt deficiencies in internal control

over compliance. clven these limitationi, orring orr audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control

over compliance that we consider to be materiaiweaknesses, as deflned above. However, material weaknesses

or significant Oenciencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified'

our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over

comptiance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed'

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control ou"r lornpri"nce and ttre resltts of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform

cuio"tt"". Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

fu?a /'
Jar{tary 31,2024
Pottsville, PennsYlvania
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JLrNE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to provide a narrative overview and

analysis of"the financial activities of the Pine Grove Area School District (the "Districf') for the year

endeA June 30, 2023.TheDistrict's financial performance is discussedandanalyzed within the context

of the financial statements and the disclosures that follow. This discussion focuses on the District's

financial performance as a whole; readers should review the basic financial statements and the notes to

the financial statements for a better understanding of the District as a whole.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total Net Position of the District increased $6,134,821 in2023 to $6,442,025 at June 30, 2023. Net

position of governmental activities increased $5,980,855 or (11 1.48%) above 2022.Net position of the

Lusiness-type activity increased $153,966, ot 16.680/o, above2022'

The District had$24,390,508 in expenses related to governmental activities in 2023; of these expenses,

S: ,6!7,444was offset by program-ipecific charges for seryices, grants or contributions. General

..u"nu", (primarily taxes and state Jubsidies) of $22,753,919 were adequate to provide for these

programs.

OVERVIEW OF THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serye as an introduction to the District's basis financial

statements. The District'i basin financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)

government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial

statements.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of

the District,s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements are prepared

using the accrual basis of accounting. The focus of these statements is long-term.

The statement of Net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities and

deferred inflows and outflows bf rerour"es. over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve

as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating'

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed

during the most recent fiscaf year. All changes in net positign are reported as soon as the underlying

"u.nt"giuing 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues

and expenses are reported inlhis statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future

fiscal ieriods (e.g., uncollected taxes and accrued vacation and sick leave)'

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are

principally irpported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other

hun"tibnritrat are intenied to recover alior a significant portion oftheir costs through user fees and

charges (business-type activities). The governrnental activities include all of the District's instructional

progiu-, and suppbrt services except for its food service operation, which is considered a business-

type activity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found of pages 24-25 of this report'

10



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

FI]ND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and

demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of fund financial
statements is short-term. Fund financial statements are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The District uses several different types of funds but the two most significant types are the

governmental and proprietary fund types.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as govemmental

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows

of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end ofthe fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the District's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term financing

decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison

between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the

governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,

and changes in fund balances for the District's major funds (General Fund and Capital Project Fund).

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 through 35 of this repoft.

The District adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement for the

General Fund has been provided on page 30 of this report to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The District accounts for its food service operation in a proprietary fund, which report the same

functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,

only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 3l-32 of
this report.

F'IDUCIARY FUNDS

The District maintains fiduciary funds for private purpose trust and student activity funds. All of the

District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of Net Position on page 34 of this

report as these activities cannot be used to finance District operations.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JLINE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided

in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be

found on pages 36-78 ofthis report'

GENERAL F'UND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District prepares a budget each year for its General Fund according to Pennsylvania law. The

budget 
"o*pii.O 

with all applicable state laws and financial policies approved by the School Board of
Directors.

The General Fund's approved budget for2023 included revenue of$27,881,869 and expenditures and

other financing uses oi$27,881,869. There were no amendments made to the budgetin2023.

Actual revenues in2023 were $30,014,706, exceeding budgeted revenues of $27,881,869 by

52,132,837.The favorable variance was attributable primarily to actual exceeding budgeted amounts

of $1,093,613, $643,688 and $395,536 in local, state and federal source revenues, respectively. The

favorable variable in local revenues was due to higher than anticipated real estate tax revenues; the

favorable state and federal revenues could be athibuted to larger than expected ESSER and PCCD

grant revenue being received inthe2022-2023 school year.

Actual expenditures exceeded the budgeted expenditure s in2023 by $35,510. The primary causes for

the unfavorable variance were increases in operation of support services, non-instructional services

expenditures and facilities acquisition, construction, and improvement services (due to construction-

related expenditures) of $1,016,530, $106,107, and $397,833, respectively. These unfavorable

increases were offset by budgeted exceeding actual amounts for instruction expenditures in the

amounts of $1,484,960. tne unfuvorable variance of $1,016,530 for support services and the favorable

balance of $1,484,960 for instruction expenditures nets to a favorable variance of $468,430. The two

substantial variances are due to expenditure coding and will be re-evaluated for proper classification in

future budget years.

Other financing uses were $4,919,686 in2023, more than the budgeted amount of $2,743,327 by

52,176,359. Tlie unfavorable variance is attributable to the early retirement of debt by the District - an

un6udgeted decision that saved the District over $120,000 in interest expense in upcoming years.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

GOVERNMENT.WIDE F'INANCIAL ANALYSK

The District's condensed government-wide financial statements are presented comparatively as

follows:

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

GOVEITNMENTAL BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITY

TOTALS

6/3012023 6130/2022 6/30/2023 6/30/2022 613012023 613012022

Current and Other assets

Capital assets

Deferred Outflows of
resources

Total Assets & Deferred
Outflows of Resources

Current and Other
liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Deferred Inflows of
resources

$17,505,580

28,810,293

2,053,470

$ 15,462,505

29,394,973

3,035,567

$1,122,616

119,266

0

$ 1,007,1 l5
104,217

0

$18,628,196

28,929,559

2,053,470

$16,469,620

29,499,190

3,035,567

$48,369,343 $47,893,045 $1,241,882 $1,111,332 $49,611,225 $49,004,377

$3,739,339

35,106,076

4,159,954

$5,398,475

35,964,971

7,145,480

$137,006

0

$160,929

0

27.318

$3,876,345

35,106,076

4,186,779

$5,559,404

35,964,971

7,172,798
2',l,82s

Total Liabilities &
Deferred Inflows

$43,004,369 $48,508,926 s164,831 $188,247 $43,169,200 s48,697,173

Net Position:
Invested in capital
assets, net of
related debt

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total Net Position

2,797,247

0

(26,242,566)

2,797,247

0

(25,284,781)

2,013,794

0

(20,837,939)

$28,810,293 $0 $119,266 $4,519 $28,929,559 $l l,113,260

0

0

(9,441,771)

0

0

957,785

0

0

282,831

Total Liabilities & Net
Position

5,364,974 (615,881) 1,077,051 923,085 6,442,025 307,204

$48,369,343 $47,893,045 $1,241,882 $1,111,332 $49,611,225 $49,004,377
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CoNDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES (IN 000'5)

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITY

TOTALS

6/30/2023 6/30/2022 6/3012023 6130/2022 6t30t2023 613012022

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
Taxes Levied for
General Purposes
Grants, Subsidies and
Other Contr.
Transfers and Other

$58,492

7,366,713

192,239

13,733,229

9,244,951

77s.739

$45,941

6,131,093

7,286

13,883,651

7,782,720

578,681

s417,881

727,732

0

0

0

67

s154,782

1,3'74,859

0

0

0

32

$476,373

9,094,445

t92,239

13,733,229

9,244,951

s200,723

7,505,952

7,286

13,883,651

7,782,720

7 806 s78 713

$30,371,363 $28,429,372 $1,145,680 
$1,52g .7723

$3 I ,5 1 7,043 $29,959,045
Total Revenues

Program Expenditures
Instruction
Instructional Student
Support
Administrative &
Financial Support
Operation &
Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Community Services
Interest on Long-Term
Debt
Unallocated
Depreciation
Food services

Total Expenditures

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Position, Ending

15,774 103,266

$25,382,222 $22,794,661

$15,068,862

2,155,544

2,585,690

2,607,634

1,500,553
456,451

0

$14,777,740

1,358,612

2,504,538

2,265,589

1,372,198
412,718

0

$15,068,862

2,155,544

2,585,690

2,607,634

1,500,553
456,451

0

$14,777,740

1,358,612

2,504,538

2,265,589

1,372,198
412,718

0

$0

0

0

0

0
0
0

0

714

$0

0

0

0

0
0
0

0 15,774 103,266

00 991

$991.714

153,966

923,085

0

S1 445

292,228

630,857

7 991,714 1.237,445

$24,032,106

5,990,855

(6 1 5,88 1)

0

5,634,711

(6,250,592)

0

6,134,821

307,204

0

5,926,939

(5,619,735)

00

($615,881) $1,077,051 s923,085$5,364,974

l4
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTWITIES

The Net Position of the governmental activities increased by $5,980,855 or 97.1 lYo above2022'The

majority of the increase was due to the adoption of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and

Fiiancial Reporting Pensions in prior years, as disclosed in Note l5 to the financial statements. Due

to this adopti,on in 201 8, a prior period adjustment of ($4,408, 176) was made during that year to

adjust the bistrict's reportable Net Pension Liability as of 6130117. The result was a significant

"ont 
ibuto. to a large net position decrease in prior years. The absence of this GASB Statement No.

68 adjustment during the 2022-23 year was alarge contributing factor to the increase in net position

over prior years. In addition, tax revenues increased approximately $150,422 or 1.080/0, attributable

primarily to an increase in local tax collections.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTTVITY

TheNet Position of the District's food service operation increased by $153,966 in2023.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE F'UNDS

GENERAL FUND (MAJOR)

The following represents a summary of Actual General Fund revenue, by source, for the years June

30,2023 and2022.

2023 Amount 2022 Amount lncrease (Decrease)

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Other

Total

Local sources

state sources

Federal sources

14,2L0,803

L3,762,155

2,04L,748

0

L4,070,443

L2,584,O79

L,337,OzL

0

140,360

L,L78,O76

704,727

0

s s s

s 30,oL4,706 s 27,99L,543 s 2,O23,L63

Two-Yea r Revenue ComParison

a2A2l22

.2022-23L
50000000

Other
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JLINE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

LOCAL SOURCES

Approximately 72.30%of the Distri c,t's2022-23local source revenue is generated from real estate

taxls. Durin gzozs,local revenues increased $140,360 over 2022. The current real estate tax revenue

increased b/approxim ately $263,236, delinquent tax collections decreased approximately $30,462,

and interest income increased by approximately $192,536'

STATE SOURCES

State sources increased by $1,178,076 or 9.36Vo. The substantial increase in PCCD grants, subsidies

associated with the Basic Education Funding, Special Education Funding, Transportation, and the

increase in Social Security and Retirement revenue accounted for the majority of the increase in state

source revenue. The pCCD grants are temporary funding sources and are not expected to be received

by the District each year. Nole: The District's retirement expense is offset by the revenue source

received from the State.

FBDERAL SOURCES

Federal sources of revenue increased by $704,727 or 52.71o/o primarily due to additional Federal

COVID and ESSER funding received in current year as compared to prior year. Similar to the State

pCCD grants, these funding sources are temporary and not expected to be received by the District each

year.

OTHER SOURCES

Revenues from other sources remained the same as last year at $0

t6
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The following represents a summary of General Fund Expenditures by function for the year June 30,

2023 and2022.

Instruction

Support Services
Non-Instructional
Services

Other Financing Uses

$ 15,447,03 5

8,708,230

870,000

4,919,686

$ 15,5 18,592

7,444,227

667,069

Increase
(Decrease)

s (71,557)

1,264,003

2022-23 Amount
2021-22
Amount

202,931

885,6884,0 33,998

Total $ 29.944,9s1 $ 27 886 $ 2,281,065

INSTRUCTION

The amount of instructional expenses reported at June 30,2023 decreased approximately $71,557 from

the prior year. The decrease can be attributed in predominantly to a decrease in the vacancy of
professional positions at various times throughout the year and the resulting employee benefits related

io the pension and insurance expenses. The vacant professional positions have all been filled and a

decrease in instructional expenses relating to professional staff vacancies is not expected going

forward. This decrease was offset by an increase in curriculum spending; curriculum spending costs

are expected to increase for the next few school years.

SUPPORT SERVICES

The amount of expenditures recognized in this category increased by approximately $I,264,003 from

the prior year. The increase in support services expenditures can be attributed an increase in substitute

teacher services resulting from professional staff vacancies at various times throughout the 2022-2023

school year. The increase can also be attributed to increased support services for our Special Education

students.

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES, CAPITAL OUTLAY, REFUND OF PRIOR
YEAR, AND DEBT SERVICE

The amount of expenditures in this category increased by approximately $1,088,619. The majority of
this increase can be attributed to the early retirement of District debt and to a transfer of $1,500,000

from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for anticipated upcoming Capital Projects. This

increase in debt repayment and Transfer for Capital Outlay was netted against less overall higher-cost

project expenditures for the district occurring in2022-23 as compared to the prior year'

L7
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Two-Yea r Expend itu re Com Pa rison

Other Financing
Uses

Non-l nstructional
Services

Support Services

I nstruction

General Obligation Bond Series 20L2

General Obligation Bond Series 2015

I

n s000000

Balance

0710112022

10000000

Additions

.2421^22

.2A22-23

Balance

06130122

Due Within
One Year

1s000000 20000000

Pavments/
Refinancing

DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources accumulated for the payment of long-term

obligations. It is normally used to account for refunding of bond issues and the payment of the annual

debiservice on existing bonds. The District periodically reviews its existing debt and refunds such

debt when economically feasible. The following is a recap of the District's bond activity for 2023:

300,000

3,125,000

0

0

(300,000) 0 0

0(3, 125,000) 0

s 3,425,000 s 0 s(3,42s,o0o) $ 0s 0

LONG.TERM DEBT

At June 30,2023,the District's general obligation debt was paid off in full. The District's legal limit

for debt is $54 million. The Distiict's bonds had a stable outlook "AAjrating from Standard and

Poor's Rating Group during the2022-23 year.

cAPrrAL PROJECTS FUND (MAJOR)

The Capital project Fund accounts for major construction projects in the District. The Capital Projects

Fund earned $gj,S3t of interest and received a $1,500,000 transfer from the General Fund, and

expended $234,159 on facility acquisition, construction and improvement projects. The fund balance

ofihe Capital Project Fund at June 30, 2023 was $3,219,886'
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The District's investment in capital assets as of June 30,2023 is summarized below.

Governmental Activities
Business-type

Activities

6,3012023 6/3012022

Totals

Construction in Progress

Land and Site ImProvements, Net

Building and Improvements, Net

Fumiture and EquiPment, Net

Vehicles, Net
Totals

613012023

0

232,960
27,240,549

1,283,998

52,786

6t3012022

0

t27,407
27,831,939

1,368,976

66,651

613012023

0

232,960
27,240,549

1,403,264

52,786

613012022

0

127,407

27,831,939
1,473,193

66,651

0

0

0

9,266lt

0

0

0

t7
0

04,2I

0

28,810,293 29,394,973 119,266 104,217 28,929,559 29,499,190

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities will be paid one year or later from the date of the Statement of Net Position' The

District's noncurrent liabilities include compensated absences, bonds payable, and other long-term

obligations, net of current portions. It should be noted the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

(GA"SB) Statement #45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment

Benefits Other than Pensions became effective for the District in the 2008-2009 fiscal year.

The postemployment Benefits obligation approximate d$3,963,213 as of June 30,2023 and is reflected

on the statement of Net Position.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an

amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This statement is intended to improve accounting and

financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided

by state und to.uigouernmental ..ploy..r about financial support for pensions that is provided by

oiher entities. Thebistrict adopted Staiement No. 68 beginning with its fiscal year 2015 financial

statements. The District has worked in conjunction with actuaries and representatives from the State

pension system to calculate the liability moving forward, as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial

statements.

SELECTED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The District is required to update, on an annual basis, information as it relates to Continuing

Disclosure for Bond Obligation Compliance.
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TAX COLLECTION RECORD

prior to 2018-lg,the school district sold its delinquent taxes to a third-party entity for a lump sum

payment determined annually. However, the district opted not to enter into this sale beginning in the

ioit-rq school year. 2018 and beyond delinquent real estate taxes are collected by PortnoffLaw

Associates, Ltd. and remitted directly to the school district.

TOP TEN TAXPAYERS

Taxpaver Description Assessed Totals

Big Lots LLC

Rausch Creek Logistics

Rausch Creek Logistics Center

Heaco LP

Newstead DeveloPment LLC

Tremont RE GrouP

Jay Dana LLC

Gold Mills lnc.

ANZ Pine Grove LLC

Rausch Creek Generation LLC

Distribution Center

Warehouse

Warehouse

Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Nursing Home

Hotel
Manufacturing

Hotel

Cogen Plant

42,348,460
4,108,800
2,93L,695

2,4t8,060
L,739,865

t,735,965
t,492,0OO

L,482,OLs

L,476,8O0

1,435,930

s

Fiscal Tax
Rate Tax Lew

Current
Year

Collection
Percent

Collected DcLnquett!
Total +

Delinqrrg!!

Percent
Collected

Total

20t7-
2018

39.75 9,211,573 8,054,896 88% 509,459 9,564,355 93%

2018-
20t9

40.7s 9,506,650 9,499,633 90% 131,610 8,630,243 9t%

2019-
2020

41.75 9,825,286 8,618,999 88% 448,022 9,067,021 92%

2020-
2021

41.75 9,841,707 8,820,426 90% 542,260 9,362,686 95%

2021-
2022

41.7s 10,995,632 10,010,494 91% 355,073 10,365,567 94%

2022-
2023

4t.75 11,397,294 10,273,731 90% 206,140 10,479,871 92%

Total

20
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HISTORY OF ASSESSED VALUE, MARKET VALUE AI\D COMMON LEVEL RATrO

School Year

2009-2010

20to-20tL
20Lr-20L2

20L2-20L3

20L3-20L4

20L4-20L5

20L5-2016

2016-20L7

2017-2018

20L8-2019

20L9-2020

2020-202L

202L-2022**

2022-2023**

Assessed Valuation
2O3,125,445

223,042,380

223,5t6,875
223,5L6,875

224,925,t35
226,O22,575

227,380,660

229,943,LL0

231,539,595

232,75L,440

235,L67,390

235,27r,600
263,547,73O

272,793,4L5

Market Value

429,44O,687

578,439,378

590,248,036

590,248,036

593,6LL,992

598,025,605

601,311,603

603,379,340

607,3L4,775

6L3,L22,280

6L8,783,478

646,O2O,823

740,L59,29L

853,Lr8,72O

Common LevelRatio

47.30%

38.60%

37.90%

3730%
37.90%

37.80o/o

36.93%

36.82%

36.83%

36.s6%

37.45%

32.68%

32.rO%

32.21%

**Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board (STEB).
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSN
JUNE 30,2023
(Unaudited)

MUNICIPAL REAL ESTATE TAX RATES

Municipalitv
Frailey Township *

Pine Grove Borough

Pine Grove Township

Tremont Borough **

Tremont Township

Washington Twp

School District
4L.75

41.75

4L.75

4L.75

41.75

4L.75

Municipal Countv

15.38
15.38

1"5.38

15.38

15.38

L5.38

Total

66.38

7I,L3
61.13

73.t3
64.L3

60.63

9.25

t4
4

16

7

3.5

* lncludes millage street lighting
**lncludes millage for fire house

Source:

Pen ta rtment of Commun and Economic Deve nt ED)

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The District expects some growth in the near future given the residential and commercial nature of the

local economy, though the amount of growth is not readily determinable. The District's assessed

values over the prior two years averaged significant growth, and above-average growth was seen in the

current year. The District's student population has remained consistent during the same period.

The District is also complying with the enacted law as passed within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania entitle Act 1 of Special Session of 2007 . The goal of the Act 1 legislation seeks to reduce

property taxes but in doing so also ensures that the District does not suffer any loss of revenue

attributable to the shifting of local revenue sources. During June 30, 2023,the District has complied

with all aspects of Act 1.

Retirement Costs associated with District Personnel increased during the fiscal year due to an increase

in the rate certified by the Public School Employees' Retirement System. The table below illustrates

the rates charged to the District.

Year

2017-L8

2018-19

20t9-20
2020-2L

202L-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-2s

2025-26

District Rate on
Covered Pavroll

32.57%

33.43%

34.29%

345L%
34.94%

35.26%

34.OO%

33s0%
34.72%
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Over the next several years, it is projected that the contribution rates for the Public School Employees'

Retirement System olPennsylvania will rise, though not as significantly as in prior years. Based on

actuarial projections, it is anticipated that by the school year 2026-2027,the total employer

contribution rate is projected tobe35.4lYo'

EMPLOYEE R"ELATIONS

The following represents the Collective Bargaining Agreements in effect at June30,2023:

The pine Grove Area School District and the Pine Grove Area Education Association currently have a

contract for a term commencing July 1,2019 and ending June 30,2023.

The Pine Grove Area School District and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal

Employees currently have a contract for a term commencing July 7, 2022 and ending June 30, 2026.

The pine Grove Area School District and the Pine Grove Area Administrative Staff and Act 93 Staff

currently have a contract for a term commencing July l, 2022 and ending June 30, 2026.

REQUESTS FOR TNFORMATTON

euestions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Jodie I. Dermo, Business Administrator, Pine Grove Area

School District, 103 School Street, Pine Grove, PA 17963.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30,2023

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Taxes receivable, net
I ntergovernmental receivables
lnternal balances
Prepaid ExPenses
Other account receivables
lnventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON.CURRENT ASSETS
Land and site imProvements - net
Building and building improvements - net

Machinery and equiPment - net
Vehicles - net

TOTAL NON.CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTALASSETS AND DEFERREDOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

NET POSITION (DEFlClr)

CURRENT LIABILITIES
lnternal balances
Accounts Payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Current Portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds PaYable
OPEB liabilitY
Pension liabilitY
Long-term portion of compensated absences

TOTAL NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSlrloN (DEFlClr)
lnvested in capital assets' net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capital projects
Unrestricted (Deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

17,505,580 1,122,616 18,628,196

$ 7,761,700 $
2,797,247
2,991,719
3,683,275

175,352
0

69,191
27,096

$ 8,527,512
2,797,247
2,991,719
3,683,275

510,930
0

69,191
48,3?2

Governmental
Activities

232,960
27,240,549

1,283,998
52 786

28,810,293

46,315,873

2,053,470

48,369,343

Business-Type
Activities Total

232,960
27,240,s49

1,403,264
52,786

47,557,755

2,053,470

$ _49,611_225_

$ 470,920
605,449

2,799,976
0
0

0
3,963,213

30,321,000
821,863

35,106,076

38,982,421

4,186,779

765,8

335

21,226

12
0
0
0

578
0
0

0
0

119,266
0

1 19,266 28,929 .559

1,241,882

0

$ 1,24 1,882

$ 335,578 $
603,785

2,799,976
0
0-T7g.es-

0
3,963,213

30,321,000
821,863

35,106,076

38,845,415

4,158,954

28,810,293

3,219,886
(26,665,205)

5,364,974

135,342
1,664

0
0
0

--'o--Tmo6-

27,825

119,266

0
957,785

1,077,051

137,006 3,876,345

0
0
0
0

28,929,559

3,219,886
(25,707,420\

6,442,025

$ 48.369.343 $ 1,241,882

-

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (DEFlClr)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Functions/Programs

lnstruction
lnstructional student suPPort
Administrative and financial support services
Operation and maintenance of plant services
Pupil transportation
Student activities
Community services
lnterest on long-term debt

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Food services

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes, net

Public utility, realty, earned income and
miscellaneous taxes levied for general purposes, net

Grants, subsidies, and contributions not restricted
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSTTION (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING

NET POSTTION (DEFICIT) - ENDING

991,714 417,881
476,37325,382,222

See notes to financialstatements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities

$ (9,487,345)
(1,860,776)
(2,324,862)
(2,331,942)

(608,666)
(335,938)

0
176,465

7,558,952 (16,773,064)

727,732 0

8,286,684 (16,773,064)

10,273,731

3,459,498
8,244,951

0
227,642
548,097

22.753,919

5,980,855

i615,881)

$ 1,077,051 $ 6,442,025

Expenses

$ 15,068,862
2,155,544
2,585,690
2,607,634
1,500,553

456,451
0

15,774
24,390,508

$ (9,487,345)
(1,860,776)
(2,324,862)
(2,331,942)

(608,666)

{335,938)
0

176,465

$

Program Revenues
Charges OPerating

for Grants and

Services Contributions

$ 5,581,517
294,768
260,828
275,692
891,887

62,021
0

192,239
0
0

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

0
0
0
0
0

$

Business-Type
Activities Total

(16,773,064)

153,899
(16,619,165)

10,273,731

3,459,498
8,244,951

0
227,709
548,097

22,753,986

6,134,821

307,204

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

58,492

0

153,899
153,899

0

0
0
0

67
0

67

153,966

923,085

$ 5,364,974



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30,2023

General
Capital
Proiects

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Taxes receivable
lnternal balances
I ntergovernmental receivables
Prepaid expense
Other receivables
lnventories

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
lnternal balances
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

$ 15,809,303 $ 4,382,643 $ 20,191,946

$ 7,661,255 $
100,445

2,991,719
1,276,322
3,683,275

0
69,1 91

27 096
5,809,303

0

0$
2,797,247

0
0

1,585,396
0
0
0

4,382,643

0

7 ,661,255
2,897,692
2,991,719
1,276,322
5,268,671

0

69,1 91

27,996
20,191,946

0

$ 1 ,859,187 $
603,785

2,799,975
5,262,947

$ 3,021,944
603,785

6211 ,757
0

0 2, 799,975

3,589,152

100,445
2,935,716
1,440,125
2,480,918

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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6,957,204 3,219,886 10,177,090

$ 15,809,303

1,162,757

0

6,425,704

3,589,152

3,320,331
2,935,716
1,440,125
2,480,918

,B86
0

0
0

9,23

$ _1,39a643_ $ _20,1 91,e46_



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30,2023

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in

governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets
Less: accumulated dePreciation

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities

in the funds.

Bond principle payable
Pension Liability
Compensated absences
OPEB
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred lnflows of Resources

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are

not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures
and are, therefore, deferred in the funds.

Governmentalfunds report debt issuance premiums and discounts
aS an other financing source or use at the time of issuance. Premiums

and discounts are reported as an unamortized asset or liability in the

District-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest

until due and PaYable.

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement'
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$ 10,177,090

57,046,649
(28,236,356)

0
(30,321,000)

(821,863)
(3,963,213)
2,053,470

(3,114,541)

2,544,738

0

0

$_5,364,94_



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
GHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

General

$ 14,210,803 $
13,762,155
2,041,748

30,014,706

$ 14,308,384
13,762,155
2,041 748

97,581 30,112,287

0 500 000 1,500,000
500, 1,500,000

REVENUES
Local sources
State sources
Federalsources

TOTAL REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES
lnstruction
Support services
Operation of non-instructional services
Facilities acquisition, construction, and

improvement services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

oTHER FTNANCTNG (USES)
Debt service
Refunds of Prior Year Revenue
Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FTNANCING (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FTNANCTNG (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES . BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES. ENDING

Capital
Proiects

Total
Governmental

Funds

97,581
0
0

0 1,

30,014,706 1,597,581 31,612,287

15,447,035
8,708,230

472,167

3,467,280
(47,5e4)

1,500,000
4,919,686

29,944,951

69,755

6,887,449

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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397 833 234,159 631,992
25,025,265 234,159 25,259,424

0
0
0

15,447,035
8,708,230

472,167

0

0

0

3,467,280
(47,594)

1,500,000
0 4,919,686

234,159 30,179,110

1,433,177

8,743,913

$ 6,957,204 $ 3,219,886 $

1,363,422

1,856,464

10,177,090



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES' AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Because some property and personal taxes will not be collected for several months

after the District's year end, they are not considered as available revenues in the

government funds.

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets'

Previous year bond costs are expensed in the governmental funds when

incurred but are amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, OPEB, and net pension liability do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmentalfunds.

lnterest is recognized in governmental funds when paid but is accrued in the
Statement of Activities.

Governmentalfunds recognize capital outlays as expenditures versus as capital

assets in the Statement of Net Assets.

Depreciation expense is recognized in the Statement of Activities but is not
recognized in governmental funds.

CHANGE IN NET POSITION . GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 1,433,177

259,075

3,425,000

(41 ,381)

1,463,159

26,505

608,1 13

(1,192,793)

$ 5,980,855

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES' AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Budgeted Amounts
o inal Final

Actual
(Budgetary

Basis)

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive

REVENUES
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

TOTAL REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES
lnstruction
Support services
Operation of non-instructional services
Facilities acquisition, construction, and

improvement services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

oTHER FTNANCTNG (USES)
Debt service
Refunds of Prior Years Revenue
Budgetary reserve
Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FTNANCTNG (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

27,881,869 27,881,869 30,014,706 2J32,837

$ 13,1 17 ,190
13,118,467

1,646,212

$ 13,1 17,190 $
13,118,467

14,210,803 $

13,762,155
2,041,748

1,093,613
643,688
3eq,536

2,132,837

0

1 646,212
27,881,869

0

27,881,869

0

30,014,706

0

16,931,995
7,691,700

366,060

16,931,995
7,69'1,700

366,060

0 0

24,989,755 24,989,755

15,447,035
8,708,230

472,167

397,833
25,025,265

1,484,960
(1,016,530)

(1 06,1 07)

(3e7,833)
(35,510)

2,031,465
0

711,862
0

2,031,465
0

711,862
0

3,467,280
(47,5e4)

0

1,500,000
4,919,686

(1,435,815)
47,594

711,862
(1,500,000)

2,743,327 2,743,327 (2,176,359)

27,733,082 27,733,082 29,944,951 (2,211,869)

148,787

6,559,792

148,787

6,559,792

69,755

6,887,449

(7e,032)

327,657

$ 6,708,579 $ 6,708,579 $ 6,957,204 $ 248,625

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30,2023

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
lnternal balances
lnventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON.CURRENT ASSETS
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

TOTAL NON-C U RRENT ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
lnternal balances
Accounts payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
lnvested in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.

31

Food
Service

$ 765,812
335,578
21,226

1,122,616

505,546
(386,280)
119,266

$ 1,241,882

$ 135,342
1,664

137,006

119,266
957 785

1,077,051

0

82527

$ 1,241,882



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Local sources:

Food service revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Food Costs
Other purchased services
Supplies
Depreciation
Dues and fees

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

oPERATING (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Earnings on investments
State sources
Federal sources

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION . END OF YEAR

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement
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Food
Service

$ 417,881
417,881

964,264
3,242
9,686

14,276
246

991,714

(573,833)

67
101,497
626,235
727,799

153,966

923,085

$ 1,077,051



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and intergovernments
Cash paid to suPPliers

NET CASH (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

GASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grants and subsidies received from non-operating activities:

State sources
Federal sources

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON.CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Capital Assets
NET CASH (USED FOR) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Earnings on investments

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

oPERATTNG (LOSS)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING (LOSS)
TO NET CASH (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation

Changes in current assets and current liabilities
(lncrease) Decrease in inventories
(lncrease) Decrease in advance to other funds
(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable
lncrease (Decrease) in accounts payable
lncrease (Decrease) in deferred revenue

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL CASH (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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Food
Service

$ 459,867
(1,00.5,0,26)

(545,159)

101,497
626,235w
(2e,325)
(29,325)

67

153,315

612 497

$ 765,812

$ (573,833)

14,276

(3,665)
32,743

8,736
(23,923)

507-wr
$ (545,159)



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30,2023

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

ASSETS
Cash
I nterfund accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES
lnterfund accounts payable
Other current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Restricted for Activity Clubs

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

$

Custodial
Funds

185,791
0

185,791

$ 185,791

40,010
783

40,793

144,998

144,998

$ 185,791

0

$

0

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Custodial
Funds

ADDITIONS
lnvestment income
Program lncome

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Program Expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION . BEGINNING OF YEAR

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET POSITION . BEGINNING - AS RESTATED

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$ 183
314,083
314,266

314,461

314,461

(1e5)

119,207

0

145,1 93

$ 144,ggg

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Pine Grove Area School District (the "District") is governed by the Pine Grove
Area School District Board of Education (the "Board"), which has responsibility and

control over all activities related to public school education within the District. The
District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and

must comply with all of the requirements of these funding source entities. Board

members are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power

to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and the
primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The financial statements of the Pine Grove Area School District have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America (GAAP) as applied to local government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant accounting policies of the District are described
below.

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and

Analysis -for State and Local Governments.

The financial statements include:

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), providing an analysis of
the District's overall financial position and results of operations.

2. Financial statements prepared using full-accrual accounting for all of the
District's activities.

3. A change in the fund financial statements to focus on major funds

REPORTING ENTITY

The District does not have any component units nor is the District a component

unit of any other primary government.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

District-wide statements - The statement of net position and the statement of

activities provide information about the financial activities of the overall district,

except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the

Ooubte counting ofjnternal activities. These statements distinguish between the

governmental and business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities

ienerally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-

6xchange transactions. Business-Type activities are financed in whole or in part

by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and

program revenues for each business-type activity of the District and for each

funCtion of the District's governmental activities.

j. Direct Expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
program.

2. itrogram revenues include 1) charges to students or recipients who

purdhase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges

provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are

restricted io meeting the operational or capital requirements of a

particular function'
3. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues

are rePorted as general revenues.

Depreciation expense can be specifically identified by function and is included in

the direct expenses of each function. lnterest on general long-term debt is

considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of

Activities. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these

statements.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information

about the District's funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each

fund categ ory - governmental, froprietary and fiduciary ' arc p.resented' The

empfrasis-ot iund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise

funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and

enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - continued

proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services result from

exchange- transaciions issociated with the principal activity of the fund.

Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up

essentia-lly equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and

investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Enterprise fund operating revenues are related to charges for food in the District's

cafeteria. The primary non-operating revenues are federal nutrition program

grants and commodities received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture'

The fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financialstatements by type

(agency). bince by Oeiinition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third

party an'O cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the District, these

iunds are not incorporated into the District-wide statements.

The District reports the following major governmentalfunds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the District's primary operating fund. lt
accounts for all financial resources of the District, except those required to be

accounted for in another fund.

Capital projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial

resources to ne used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities,

other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds. The District also uses

the capital projects fund to p-ay initial functional costs, such as textbooks, involved

in opening a ficility, therefore allexpenditures are not recorded as capital outlay'

The District reports the following major proprietary fund types:

Food Service Fund - The Food Service Fund is used to account for all financial

transactions related to the food service operation'

Other fund types:

Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held by the District as an agent

for various student groups and clubs.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED IN YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

GASB Statement No. 96 Subscription Based lnformation Technology
Arrangemenfs effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2022.

An SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another
party's (an SBITA vendor's) information technology (lT) software, alone or in
combination with tangible assets (the underlying lT assets), as specified in the

contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The

subscription term includes the period during which a government has a

noncancellable right to use the underlying lT assets. The subscription term also

includes periods covered by an option to extend (if it is reasonably certain that the
government or SBITA vendor will exercise that option) or to terminate (if it is

ieasonably certain that the government or SBITA vendor will nof exercise that
option.) Under this Statement, a government generally should recognize a right-

to-use subscription asset-an intangible asset-and a corresponding subscription
liability. A government should recognize the subscription liability at the

commencembnt of the subscription term, which is when the subscription asset is
placed into service. The subscription liability should be initially measured at the
present value of subscription payments expected to be made during the

subscription term. Future subscription payments should be discounted using the

interest rate the SBITA vendor charges the government, which may be implicit, or

the government's incremental borrowing rate if the interest rate is not readily

deteiminable. A government should recognize amortization of the discount on the

subscription liabiiity as an outflow of resources (for example, interest expense) in

subsequent financial reporting periods. The subscription asset should be initially

measured as the sum of (1) the initial subscription liability amount, (2) payments

made to the SBITA vendor before commencement of the subscription term, and

(3) capitalizable implementation costs, less any incentives received from the

Sgtfn vendor at or before the commencement of the subscription term. A
government should recognize amortization of the subscription asset as an outflow

6f resources over the subscription term. The District did not have any SBITA during

the year ended June 30, 2023.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The district-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported

using the economic'resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded

when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,

regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange

transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly

receiving (oi giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and

donatioris. dn 
"ri """rual 

basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the

fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is

recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been

satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Undel t!i!
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District

considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they

are collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when

the relaied fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general

long-term debt, claimg and judgments, and. compensated absences, which are

rec6gnized as expenditures to lhe extent they have matured. General capital

asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
proceeds of general long-term tiabilities are reported as other financing sources.

All business-type activities and enterprise funds of the district follow FASB

Statements anO lnterpretations on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting
principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those

pronouncementsconflictwithGASBpronouncements.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . CONtiNUEd

BUDGETING

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting

priniiples. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund.
'Project-length financial plans are used for capital projects funds. All

unencumbered budget appropriations, except capital projects, lapse at the end of

each fiscalyear.

At the fund level, actual expenditures cannot exceed budgeted appropriations;

however, with proper approval by the school board, budgetary transfers between

accounts can be made. The budgeted financial statements represented in this

report reflect the final budget authorization, including all transfers'

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,

demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three

months or less from the date of acquisition.

lnvestments with a maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase are recorded

at cost or amortized cost. Those with a maturity of greater than one year are

reported at fair value. Changes in the fair value of investments are recorded as

investment income.

INVENTORY

lnventories are recorded using the consumption method of accounting and consist

of purchased food, supplies, 
-and 

surplus commodities. received from the federal

tovernment. Food and supply purchases are recorded at invoice cost, computed

6n a first-in, first-out method. Surplus commodities are stated at standard costs,

as determined by the Department of Agriculture. ln the fund based financial

statements, commodities received are recorded as deferred revenue until

consumed.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 'CONtiNUEd

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and

equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. The

oistiict defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than

$1,SOO. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if

purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair

value at the date of donation'

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the

asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major oulays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are

constructed. lnterest incurred during construction is not capitalized'

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful

lives:

Description Useful Life

Land
Land lmprovements
Buildings and lmProvements

Furniture and EquiPment

Vehicles

Not Depreciated
20 years

15-30 years
5-15 years
3-15 years

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences are those for which employees receive pay. A liability is

,".oio"O through the use of estimates, which apply historical date to current

factors. The District maintains records of unused absences and applies current

and/or contracted compensation rates to the various types of compensated

absences. Sick leave is recorded using the termination payment method, which

has no current maximum per employee. The District allows only restricted

sabbatical leave and therefore, has no recorded liability in advance of the

sabbatical.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

ln government-wide financial statements as well as proprietary fund financial
statements, all accrued liabilities and long-term debt are reported as liabilities in

the statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance

costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

ln fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums

and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The
face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums

received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance
costs, whether or not withheld form the actual debt proceeds received, are reported

as debt service expenditures.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents whose use is limited by legal

requirements such as a bond indenture. Restricted assets are reported only in
the District-wide financial statements.

FUND EQUITY

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 54 (see Note 12).

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the District-

wide financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related

debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the

outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital

assets.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . cONtiNUEd

FOOD SERVICE FUND - UNALLOCATED COSTS

The District does not attempt to allocate Building-Wide Costs to the Food Service
Fund. Thus, General Fund expenditures (utilities, janitorial services, insurance,

etc.) which partially benefit the Food Service Fund are not proportionately

recognized within the Food Service Fund. Similarly, the Food Service Fund does
not recognize a cost for the building space it occupies (no facilities rental expense).

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS - COBRA BENEFITS

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the District
makes health care benefits available to eligible employees and eligible
dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for the

coverage. The premium plus 2o/o administration fee is paid in full by the insured

on or before the tenth day of the month for the actual month covered. This
program is offered for a duration of 18 months. There is no associated cost to the
District under this program, and there are zero participants in the program as of
June 30, 2023.

RETIREE BENEFITS

ln addition to the pension benefits described in Note 16, the District makes health

care benefits available to all eligible employees who retired from the District. The
premium is paid in full by the insured who retired prior to June 30, 2012 on or

before the tenth day of the month for the actual month covered. The District pays

the full cost of retirees who retired as of June 30, 2012 less various contributions
by the retiree. There are currently twenty participants in the program as of June

30,2023.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affeci the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying

notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's

deposits may not be returned. The deposit policy_of the school district adheres to

state statutei and prudent business practice. Cash equivalents are defined'as

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts

of cash and include investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits at various financial

institutions, a money market mutual fund investment in Pennsylvania Treasurer's

lnvest program for Local Government, a money market fund and certificate of

deposit, th6 Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF), and cash

on'hand of $475. The market values of deposits are equal to the cost of the

deposits.

Under Section 440.1of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District

is permitted to:

Deposit in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions

insured by the iederal Deposit lnsurance Corporation to the extent that such

accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above the insured maximum,

provided that approved collateral as provided by law is pledged by the depository.

At June 30, 202g, the carrying amount of the District's deposits *9! _$_8,-668,920'
and the bank balance wa-s $9,024,305' Of the bank balance, $500,001' was

covereO by federal depository insurance coverage and $8,524,304. was exposed

to custodiil credit risk because it was uninsured and the collateral held by the

depository's agent was not in the District's name'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

INVESTMENTS

The investment policy of the school district adheres to state statutes and prudent

business practices. The investments of the school district consist of certificates of
deposit and U.S. Agency Obligations as authorized by the Board. lnvestments
are stated at cost including accrued interest which approximates market value.

The District invests in the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund
(PSDLAF) and the Pennsylvania Treasurer's lnvest Program for Local

Government as authorized by the Board. PSDLAF was established to enable
school districts to pool funds for investment in instruments authorized by Section

440.1 of the Pennsylvania Public School Code of 1949, as amended.
Pennsylvania Treasurer's lnvest Program for Local Government insures that it will

not place deposits with any single issuing institution if the largest participant's pro

rata share of such deposits exceeds $100,000., unless such deposits are secured

by (1) Treasurer, federal agencies (collateralized at 102o/o) or (2) certificates of
deposit (collateralized by 120o/o).

As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following investments'

PA School District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF) $ 2,841,630

Total lnvestments $ 2,841,630

Although not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and not

subject to regulatory oversight, PA lnvest and PSDLAF act like money market
muiual funds in that their objective is to maintain a stable net asset of $1 per share,

are rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization and are subject

to an independent annual audit.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

INVESTMENTS - continued

lnterest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fail value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. lt is the practice of the District to limit its interest rate

risk by investing in securities with maturity dates under one year. At June 30,

2023, the District's investments in securities of U.S. agencies had maturity dates
of less than one year.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments
or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The District
has no investments subject to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk

Under Section 4440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District

is permitted to invest its monies as follows:

Obligations of (1) the United States of America or any of its agencies or

instrumentalities backed by the fullfaith and credit of the United States of America,
(2) the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth, or (3) any political

subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or

instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

INVESTMENTS - continued

Conce on Risk

The District does not have a policy that would limit the amount it may invest in any

one issuer. The District's investments are with PA lnvest and Pennsylvania
School District's Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF).

RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The classification of cash, cash equivalents, and investments on the combined

financial statements is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. A
reconciliation between classifications of cash and investments on the combined
financial statements and the classifications per GASB Statement No. 3 is as

follows:

Cash & Cash
Equivalents lnvestments Total

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and
lnvestments $8, 668,920 $ 2,841,630 $ 11,510,550

NOTE 3 . INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES:

lntergovernmental receivables listed in the General Fund at June 30, 2023, are

comprised of the following:

State Share of Social SecuritY

State Share of Retirement
State Share of RentalSubsidY
State Share of Transportation Subsidy
Federal Programs
Local Programs
Total lntergovernmental Receivables

$ 174,976
833,835
190,309

7,810
2,386,965

99,380
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 4 - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBT

A summary of general long-term debt is as follows:

Accrued
Compensated

Absences

District
Other Post-
Employment

Benefits

PSERS
Other Post-
Employment

Benefits

PSERS
Pension
Liability

$ 28,288,000 $
2,033,000

0
$ 30,321,000

General
Obligation

Bond
Series of

2012

General
Obligation

Bond
Series of

2015
$ 3,125,000 $

0
(3,125,000)

0$

$

Balance - June 30,2022
Additions
Reductions - Payments
Balance - June 30,2023

Due Within One Year

756,530
65,333

0
$ 821,863

$ $ 3,822,441 $ r,633,000
00

(1,114,228\ (378,000)
$ 2,708,213 $ 1,255,000

300,000
0

(300,000)
0

Total
37,924,971
2,098,333

(4,e17,228)
35,106,076$

$ 00

$

$
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 4 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2012

On June 14,2012, the District issued $9,620,000. of General Obligation Bonds -
Series of 2012, which was used to advance refund all of the District's outstanding
General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2008 and pay certain costs and expenses
related to the issuance of the Bonds. lnterest rates on the Bonds vary from .45o/o

to 2.50o/o and mature in various amounts beginning March 1, 2013 and ending
March 1, 2023. The General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2012 were satisfied
September 2023.

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2015

On May 20,2015, the District issued $6,555,000. of General Obligation Bonds -
Series of 2015, which was used to advance refund all of the District's outstanding
General Obligation Bonds - Series A of 2010 and General Obligation Bond -
Series B of 2010 and pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance of
the Bonds. lnterest rates on the Bonds vary from .32o/o to 2.10o/o and mature in

various amounts beginning September 15,2015 and ending February 5,2024.
The General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2015 were satisfied in September 2023.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 4 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

Gompensated Absences

The General Long-Term Debt group of accounts includes liability of $821,863,
which represents the amount of compensated absences computed by using

unused sick and vacation days at current compensation rates. lf an employee

separates from service for reasons other than sickness or retirement, no payout is

required. lf an employee retires with unused compensated absences, the payout

policy is as follows:

EmergencY and Personal - no PaYout

Vacation (administrative personnel) - limited accumulation of vacation days

Sickness - payout is based on age and years of service in the District.

Other Post-emPloYment Benefits

General Long-Term Debt includes $2,708,213. and $1 ,255,000. of liabilities, which

represent other benefits provided upon termination of employment. The reader

should consult the separate footnote on these benefits for more information'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTEs.CAPITALASSETS:

A summary of capital asset activity during the fiscal year follows:

Balance Net Additions
June 30,2022 (Deductions)

Govern mental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $

Total CapitalAssets, Not Being
Depreciated

64,449 $

64,449 0

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and lmprovements
Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles
Site lmprovements

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Balance
June 30, 2023

0 $ 64,449

48,373,798
7,727,38s

184,795
88,109

353,983
146,652

0

107,478

64,449

48,727,781
7,874,037

184,795
195,587

56,374,087 608,113 56,982,200

Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings and lmprovements
Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles
Site lmprovements

Total Accumu lated Depreciation

Governmental Activities -
CapitalAssets, Net

Busi ness-type Activities:
Furniture/Equipment
Less: Accumulated Deprecation

Business-type Activities -
GapitalAssets, Net

(27,043,563) (1,192,793)

(20,541,85e)
(6,358,409)

(118,144)
(25,151)

(945,373)
(231,630)

(13,865)
(1,925)

(21,487,232)
(6,590,03e)

(132,00e)
(27,076)

(28,236,356)

$2e 973 $ _(584,69E $ 28,810,293

$ 476,221 $
(372,004)

29,325 $
(14,276)

505,546
(386,280)

$ 104,217 $ 15,049 $ 119,266
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the District as follows

614,228
60,554
54,984

448,739
14,288

$ 1,192,793

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND OPERATING BALANCES:

lndividual fund operating balances for the year ended June 30, 2023 were as

follows:

Regular Programs - Elementary / Secondary
I nstructional Student Support Services
I nstructional Staff Support Services
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services
Student Activities
Total Depreciation Expense

lnternal Balance
Receivable

$

Activities Fund
General Fund
Capital Projects
Cafeteria Fund
TotalAll Funds

0

1,276,321
1,585,396

335,578

lnternal Balance
Payable

40,010
1 ,859,186
1,162,757

135,342

$$

$ 3,197,295 $ 3,197,295

All balances are current and are payable within one year. Balances exist due to

normal operating transfers between individual funds
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 7 . TAXES ASSESSED AND DEFERRED REVENUE:

The following is a listing of the taxes assessed along with their respective
assessed valuations' 

ossessed
Tax Type

41,75 mills
Millage/Rate Valuation

$-1d7DW
2,016,000

Tax

Revenue

Recognized

Occupation Tax - Act 51 1

Total Assessed Valuation
$200.00/person

$ 12,738,520

The following is the tax calendar showing levy date, payment periods and

delinquent dates for the above listed taxes:

Levy date
Discount (2%) payment period
Face payment period
Penalty (10o/o) payment period
Delinquent date

The balances at June 30, 2023, are as follows:
Gross for

Taxes Uncollectible

Tax Receivable Taxes

July 1

July 1 to August 31

September 1 to October 31

November 1 to December 31

January 1

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and

unpaid taxes receivable reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as

determined by the administration. A portion of the net amount estimated to be

collectible was measurable and available within the 60 days, was recognized as

revenue, and the balance deferred in the fund financial statements. All taxes,

net of uncollectible amounts, are recognized in the period for which levied in the
govern ment-wide financia I statements, regard less of when col lected.

Estimated

to be

Collectible

Deferred

Taxes

RealEstate

Earned lncome

LocalService

Realty Transfer

Occupational Privilege Tax

Tax

$ 599,415 $

239,853

4,637

9,030

2,516,746

$

$ 3,369,681 $ 377,962 2,544,739

509,272

035,467962377

0

0

0

0

599,415 $

239,853

4,637

9,030

2,138,784

90,143

239,853

4,637

9,030

103,317

$

2,

0

0

0
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 8 . BUDGETARY INFORMATION:

No budget versus actual comparison for the Capital Projects Fund has been
displayed in the accompanying financial statements as no budget is required nor
was adopted for the fund.

NOTE 9 - INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS:

lndividual fund operation transfers for the year ended June 30, 2023 were as

follows:
Transfer ln Transfer Out

$_1,500,900

NOTE 1O . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The collective bargaining agreement between the District and the employees
expires as follows:

General Fund
Capital Projects
TotalAll Funds

Teaching Staff
Support Staff
Act 93 Employees

$ 0
1,500,000

June 30,2027
June 30, 2026
June 30, 2026

$ 1,500,000
0

$-lFo0F00-

GRANT PROGRAMS

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs

charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by

the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money
received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at

June 30, 2012 may be impaired. ln the opinion of the District, there are no

significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and

regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been

recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements for such

contingencies.

During the normalcourse of business, the District is subject to numerous disputes

and claims. At June 30, 2023, there were no items of pending or threatened
litigation which management feels would have a material effect on the District's

financial condition.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 11 - REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES:

During the current year, revenues from local sources consisted of the following

General
Fund

Other
Funds Total

Property Taxes, Current
Earned lncome Taxes
Other Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
lnvestment lncome
Co-curricular Activities
Other Revenue from Local Sources
Total

$ 10,273,731 $

1,535,401
1,229,685

435,307
130,061

65,797
540,821

0
0

0
0

97,581
0
0

$ 1Q,273,731
1,535,401
1,229,685

435,307
227,642

65,797
540 821

$ 14,2 10,803 $ 97,581 $ 14,308,384

NOTE 12 - GASB STATEMENT NO. 54:

On June 15, 2010, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

issued GASB Statement No. 54 (Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental

Fund Type Definitions). This Statement defines the different types of fund

balances that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes.

GASB-54 establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined

classifications that should be based on hierarchy that reflects the extent to which

the government is bound to honor constraints on how those funds can be spent'

Established classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either in a

nonspendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose stipulated by

constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose determined

by a formal action of the School District Board of Directors (the district's highest

level of decision-making authority).

Assigned - Amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose by the finance

committee or an individual authorized by the governing body.

Unassigned - Residual amounts available for any purpose not contained in other

classifications.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 12 - GASB STATEMENT NO. 54 - CONtiNUEd

ORDER OF FUND BALANCE SPENDING POLICY

The District's policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance,

restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and

unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year by adjusting entries.

First, nonspendable fund balances are determined. Then, restricted fund

balances for the nongeneral funds are classified as restricted fund balance.

It is possible for the nongeneral funds to have negative unassigned fund balance

when nonspendable amounts plus the restricted fund balances for specific
purpose amounts exceed the positive fund balance for the nongeneral fund.

MINIMUM FUND BALANCE

The District's school board policy states:

1.) The school district will strive to maintain an unassigned general fund balance

of not less than five percent (5%) and not more than eight percent (8%) of the

budgeted expenditures for that fiscal year.

2; The total fund balance, consisting of several portions including committed,

assigned and unassigned, may exceed eight percent (8%).

3.) lf the unassigned portion of the fund balance falls below the threshold of five
percent (SYo), the board will pursue variations of increasing revenues and

decreasing expenditures or a combination of both until five percent (5%) is
attained. lf the assigned and unassigned portions of the fund balance

exceed eight percent (8%) of budgeted expenditures, the Board may utilize a
portion of the fund balance by appropriating excess funds for nonrecurring
expenditures onlY.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 12 - GASB STATEMENT NO' 54 - continued

BAANCE SHEET. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30,2023
Total

Capital

General Funds

EQUITY
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCE

$ 0$
100,445

2,935,716

1,440,125

2,480,918

0$
3,219,886

0

0

0

0

3,320,331

2,935,716

1,40,125
B

$ 6,957,204 $ 3,219,886 $ 1 177 090

NOTE 13 . RELATED ORGANIZATIONS:

Not included in the School's District financial statements are any Parent-Teacher

Associations (PTA), Parent-Teacher Organizations (PTO) and athletic and band

booster clubs. These agencies provide services to students and employees of

the School District, but are separate legal entities having sufficient autonomy in

the management of their own affairs to distinguish thel as separate from the

administra"tive organization of the School District. The School District does not

account for thesl entities as component units or joint ventures; it does not

maintain an ongoing financial interest or have responsibility for these entities'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 14 . POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - DISTRICT:

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Pine Grove Area School District Retiree Health Care Plan (the Plan) is a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the School Board. The

Plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to eligible retirees of the District
in accordance with the various labor contracts and personnel policies. lnasmuch as

the Plan has no assets, reporting another employee benefit trust fund in the
accompanying financial statements is not required nor was a separate or stand-alone
report issued.

FUNDING POLICY

The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and

may be amended by the School Board, subject to applicable labor contracts and

benefit plans, Plan members are required to pay $100. per month towards the
premium for medical, drugs, dental, and vision. The District pays the remaining
premium for the member and remaining premium for member and spouse for those

under Act 93 Agreement. The District also pays the full premium for life insurance

in varying amounts. The length of benefits coverage ranges from five years or from

date of retirement to age 65.

For 2023, the District made no contributions and instead elected to continue funding

on a pay-as-you-go basis, which amounted to $406,575. These costs are

recognized as an expense when claims or premiums are paid.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - DISTRICT -

continued

Plan Membership
lnactive plan member or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits
lnactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

Active plan members

168
0

28
196

Components of the net OPEB liability
Total OPEB liabilitY

Plan fiduciary net Position
Net OPEB LiabilitY

1.000/o

Decrease

3.06%

1% Decrease

5.00%

decreasing

to 4.00o/o

Current

Discount

Rate

4.060/o

$ 2,708,213
0

$ Jlo8213_

0.00%

1.00%

lncrease

5.06%

1.00o/o

lncrease

7.00o/o

deceasing to

6.00%

Plan fiduciary net position of the total OPEB liability

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

Net OPEB liabilitY (asset) $ 2,899,337 $ 2,708,213 $ 2,528,626

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend

rates
Current

Healthcare

cost Trend

Rates 6.00%

decreasing to

5.00%

$ 2,452,504 $ 2,708,213 $ 3,011,323Net OPEB liabilitY (asset)
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - DISTRICT -

continued

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported

amounts and assumptions about the probability of potential occurrences of
certain events in the future. Examples include assumption about future
employment, mortality, healthcare costs trends, inflation, etc. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required

contributions of the District are subject to constant changes and modifications as

actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates and

assumptions are formed regarding the future. Projections of retiree benefits for
financial reporting purposes are based on current plan activities as it is handled

by the District and the benefits are received by the eligible plan members and

include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the

historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the District and plan

members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

ln the July 1 ,2021 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial
cost method was used. There were also merit and seniority salary rate increase

assumptions taken into consideration and those are detailed in the actuarial

study and are based on age. There was also an inflationary rate assumption
factored into the calculation. Per the actuarial study, the assumed rate ranges

from 5.5% in the short-term to 3.9% in the long-term for health care related costs.
The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of active member payroll

over a period of 20 years.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension

expense, information about the fiduciary net posit!9n of the Public School

Employees' Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from
pSERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they

are reporteO ny e-Sf nS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds

of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance

with the benefit terms investments are reported at fair value.

General Information about the Pension PIan

PLAN DESCRIPTION

pSERS is a governmental cost-sharing, multi-employer defined benefit pension

plan that pivides retirement benefits to public school employees of the

borron*ealth of Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in the

System include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly.public

school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year,

and part-time-per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of

s"*i.e in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania.
pSERS issues a publi-cly available financial report than can be obtained at

www. psers.state. Pa. us.

psERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are

etigibfe for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1

yeir of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of credited service; or

(c) 35 or more years of iervice regardless of age. Act 1 20 of 2010 (Act 120)

prlr"ru"t the benefits of existing m-embers and introduced benefit reductions for

individuals who become new members on or after July 1 ,2011 . Act 120 created

two new membership classes, Membership class T-E (Class I.r) and

Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E

and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years of

service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater

than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

BENEFITS PROVIDED

Act 5 of 2017 (Act 5) introduced a hybrid benefit with two membership classes
and a separate defined contribution plan for individuals who become new
members on or after July 1,2019. Act 5 created two new hybrid membership
classes, Membership Class T-G (Class T-G) and Membership Class T-H (Class
T-H) and the separate defined contribution membership class, Membership
Class DC (Class DC). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-G and Class T-
H members must work until age 67 with a minimum of 3 years of credited service.
Class T-G may also qualify for normal retirement by attaining a total combination
of age and service that is equal to or greater than 97 with a minimum of 35 years
of credited service.

Benefits are generally equal lo 2o/o or 2.5o/o, depending upon membership class,
of the member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the
number of years of credited service. For members whose membership started
prior to July 1 ,2011, after completion of five years of service, a member's right
to the defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected.
For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten
years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five
years of credited service. Such benefits are generally equal lo 2% or 2.5o/o,

depending upon membership class, of the member's final average salary (as

defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but
not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member
would have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age

may apply for disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has

reached age 62 with at least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least
three years of credited service for Class T-E and Class T-F members) or who
has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class T-
F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would

have been effective if the member had retired on the day before death.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

CONTRIBUTIONS

Member Contributions:

Active members who joined the system prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at

s.isrto (Membership itass T-C or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the

member's qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the system on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active

or inactive as ot.tuty 1,20d1, contribute at6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at

7.S0o/o (Membersfrip Class T-D) of the member's qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1 ,2011,
contribute at7.50o/o (automltic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and

for members who elected Class T-D membership, the higher contribution rates

began with service rendered on or after January 1,2002'

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contributed

at the Membership class T-E rate of 7.50o/o (base rate) of the member's

qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2011, who elected Class

f-f meriOership, contribute at 10.30% (base rate) of the member's qualifying

.o.f"nt"tion. All new hires after June 30, 2019, who elected Class T-G

membership, contribute al 8.25o/o (base rate) of the member's qualifying

compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2019, who elected Class T-H

membership, contribute at 7.50o/o (base rate) o_f the member's qualifying

compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2021, who elected Class T-E

membership, contribute 8.00% of the member's qualifying compensation. All

new hires after June 30,2021, who elected Class T-F membership, contribute

10.g0% of the member's qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30,

2021, who elected Class T-G membership, contribute 9.00% of the member's

qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2021, who elected Class

f-H riemnership, contribute 8.25o/o of the member's qualifying compensation.

All new hires after June 30, 2021,who elected Class DC membership, contribute

7.SOo/oof the member's qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E,Class

T-i, Class T-G & T-H are atfecteO by a "shared risk" provision in Act 120 of 201O

6ai in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E contribution

rate to fluctuate bltween 5.50% and 9.50% and Membership Class T-F

contribution rate to fluctuate between 8.30% and 1 2.30o/o, Membership Class T-

G contribute rate to fluctuate between 2.50% and 8.50% and Membership Class

T-H contribute rate to fluctuate between 1.500/o and 7.50%.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

PEVS'OA' LIABILITIES, PEA'S'ON EXPENSE, AA'D DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO
PE VSTOwS

Employer Contributions:

The school district's contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023 was 3431% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an

amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension
plan from the District were $3,400,109. for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The defined contribution rate of .20% is an estimated rate. lt is recommended
employers use the actual defined contributions made to the PSERS defined
contribution plan. This may impact contributions made to the pension plan.

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of $30,321,000. for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System's total
pension liability as of June 30,2021 to June 30,2022. The District's proportion

of the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year
reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered
payroll. At June 30, 2023, the District proportion was .06820/o, which was a
decrease of .0007o/o from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'Gontinued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

PEA'S'ON LIABILITIES, PENS'O'V EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OFRESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OFRESOURCES RELATED TO

PE rsroirs

For the year ended June 30,2023, the District recognized pension exp-ense of

$(t,gAg,bOO). At June gO, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the

following sources:
Deferred Deferred

Outflovus lnflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between erpected and actual

eperience $

Changes in assumPtions

Net difference between projected and

actual investment earnings

Changes in proportion

Difference betriveen employer contri butions

and proportionate share of total contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

TotalAll Funds $ 1,086,000

14,000
905,000

0

167,000

262,000
0

514,000
892,000

$

0

0
0
0

$1 000
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION 'continued

PEA'S'ON LIABILITIES, PENS ION EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OFRESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OFRESOURCES RELATED TO

PE TSTONS - continued

g1,0g6,000. reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

iesulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be

recogniled as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended. June 30,

202i, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense

as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total Deferred Outflows/

lnflows of Resources

Estimated
Amount

$ (132,000)
(298,000)
(871,000)
719,000

0

$( 582,000)

The total pension liability at June 30,2022 was determined by rolling _fonryard 
the

system's'total pension liability at June 30,2021 to June 30,2022 using the

tolto*ing actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

. Valuation Date - June 30,2021

. Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal- level % of pay'

. lnvestment return -7.OOo/o, includes inflation at2'75o/o

. Salary Growth - Effective average of 4.50o/o, comprised of inflation of 2-50o/o

and 2.00o/o for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

. Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-

2010 Retiree Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS'

experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2020 Mortality

lmprovement Scale.
. The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability decreased from

7.00o/o as of June 30,2021and as of June 30,2022'
. Demographic and economic assumptions approved by the Board for use

effective with the June 30, 2021 acluarialvaluation:
. Salary growth rate - decreased from 5.00% to 4'50%
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION 'continued

PEA'SION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OFRESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OFRESOURCES RELATED TO

PEwSTONS - continued

Real wage growth and merit or seniority increases (components for salary

g rowth ) - d ecrease lr om 2.7 5% and 2.25% to 2.50o/o and 2'00o/o, respective ly'

Mortality rates - Previously based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males

and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS'experience and projected using a

modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality lmprovement Scale. Effective

with the June 30, 2021 acluarial valuation, mortality rates are based on a

blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 Retiree Tables for Males and

Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS' experience and projected using a

modified version of the MP-2020 lmprovement Scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2022 valuation were based

on the results of an actuarial experience study that was performed for the five

year the period ending June 30, 2020'

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

determinid using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of

expected future leal rates bf return (expected relurns, net of pension plan

investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by

weighting lhe expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation

percentage and by adding expected inflation'

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is

established and may be amenOeO by the Board. Plan assets are managed with

a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the

benefits provided through the pension.

o

a
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

PE VS'O'V LIABILITIES, PETVS'O'V EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OFRESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OFRESOURCES RELATED TO

PE TSTONS - continued

Global public equity
Private Equity
Fixed lncome
Commodities
lnfrastructure / MLPs
Realestate
Absolute return
Cash
Levarage

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

5.3o/o

8.0o/o
2.3o/o

2.3%
5.4o/o

4.60/o

3.5o/o

O.5o/o

0.5%

28.Oo/o

12.0o/o
33.0%

9.00/o
9.Oo/o

11.0%
6.0%
3.0o/o

-11.00o/o
lOOo/o

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30,2022.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

PENS'ON LIABILITIES, PENS'OA' EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED

TO PENSIOITS - continued

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7'00%' The

proJection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that

.ontribrtions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate

and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required

iates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's

tiOuci'ary net poiition was projected to be available to make all projected future

benefit payments of current pian members. Therefore, the long-term expected

rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected

benefit payments to determine the total pension liability'

SENSITIVITY OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate

of 7.00o/o, aJ well as what the net position liability would be if it were calculated

using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one

percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

1%

Decrease
6.00%

Current
Discount

Rate
7.OOo/o

1%

lncrease
8.00%

Districts proportionate share of

the net pension liabilitY $ 39,218,000 $30,321,000 $ 22,820,000

PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Detailed information about PSER's fiduciary net position is available in PSERS

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's

website at www. Psers.Pa'qov'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS):

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Other Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to oPEB, and oPEB

expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public School

Employees' Retirement system (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from

PSERS's fiduciary net poSitiOn have been determined on the same basis as

they are reporte-d by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are

recognizeO when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

lnveitments are reported at fair value.

General lnformation about the Health Insurance Premium Assisfance

Program

Health lnsurance Premium Assistance Program

The System provides Premium Assistance which, is a governmental- cost

strarini, multiple-employer other postemployment benefit plan (OPEB) for all

"iigibr;'r"tirees 
who qJalify and elect to participate. Employer contribution

rai-es for premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the

Health lnsurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium

Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Effective January 1, 2002

unu". the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating. eligible retiree-s are

entifled to receive premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100

pei montf' or their out-of- pocke,t monthly health insurance premium' To

receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health

inrrr"n.6 through either their school employer or the PSERS' Health Options
pi"fi;. ns oi June 30, 2021, there were no assumed future benefit

increases to participating eligible retirees'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Premium Elioibilitv Criteria

Retirees of the System can participate in the Premium Assistance program if
they satisfy the following criteria:

. Have 24 % or more years of service, or

. Are a disability retiree, or

. Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation
age, and
. Participate in the HOP or employer-sponsored health insurance program.

Pension Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan that provides retirement benefits to public school employees of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in
the System include allfull-time public school employees, part-time hourly public

school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school
year, and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80

days of service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in
Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that can

be obtained at www.psers.pa.qov.

Benefits Provided

Participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive premium assistance
payments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly
health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must

obtain their health insurance through either their school employer or the

PSERS' Health Options Program. As of June 30, 2022, there were no assumed
future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

1. Summary of significant Accounting Policies - continued

Employer Contributions:

The school districts' contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2022 was 0.80% of covered payroll, actuarially determined

as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected

to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an

additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to

the OpEB plan from the District were $80,000. for the year ended June 30,

2022.

2. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $1,255,000' for its
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was

measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate

the net OpEB liability was determined by rolling fonrard the System's total

OpEB liability as of June 30, 2021 to June 30,2022. The District's proportion

of the net OpEB liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year

reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered

payroll. At June gO, i023, the District's proportion was '0682% percent, which

was a decrease of .0007o/o from its proportion measured as of June 30,2022'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS)' continued

2. OPEB Liabilities, oPEB Expensen and Deferred outflows of Resources

and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to OPEB - continued

For the year ended June 90,2023, the District recognized oPEB expense of

$58,000. At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following

sources:
Deferred Deferred

Outflows lnflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual

experience

Changes in assumPtions

Net difference between projected and

actual investment earnings

Changes in proPortion

Difference between employer contributions

and proportionate share of total contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

TotalAll Funds $

$1g1 ,000. reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting

from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be

recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,

202g. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as

follows:
Year Ending Estimated

Amount

$ 12,000 $

139,000

3,000

27,000

7,000

296,000

0

68,000

0

0

0

0

000371$,000I8

June 30,w
2024
2025
2026
2027

Thereafter
Total Deferred Outflows/

lnflows of Resources

$ (46,000
(28,000)
(30,000)
(38,000)
(48,000)

0
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

3. Actuarial AssumPtions

The Total OPEB Liability as of June 30,2022, was determined by rolling fonryard

the System's Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 using

the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

. Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level o/o of pay.

. lnvestment return - 4.09o/o - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate.

. Salary growth - Effective average of 4.50o/o, comprised of inflation of 2.00o/o

and 2.00% for real wage groffih and for merit or seniority increases.
. Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per year.
. Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1 ,200

in premium assistance per year.
. Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50o/o PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-

2010 Retiree Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS'
experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2020
lmprovement Scale.

. Participation rate:
.Eligible retirees will elect to participate Pre age 65 at 50%
oEligible retirees will elect to participate Post age 65 al70%

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2021 valuation were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study that was performed for the five year
period ending June 30, 2020.

The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate:

. The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 determined the
employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2022.

. Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance
through the third fiscal year after the valuation date.

. Asset valuation method: Market Value.

. Participation rate: 63% of eligible retirees are assumed to elect premium

assistance.. Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS'
experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
lmprovement Scale.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

3. Actuarial Assumptions - continued

lnvestments consist primarily of short term assets designed to protect the

principal of the plan assets. The expected rate of return on OPEB plan

investments was determined using the OPEB asset allocation policy and best

estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is

established and miy n6 amended by the Board. Under the program, as defined

in the retirement code employer contribution rates for Premium Assistance are

established to provide reserves in the Health lnsurance Account that are

sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding

year

OPEB - Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

0.5%Cash 100.0%
100.0%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates

of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30,2022.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 4'09%' Under

the plan's funding policy, contributions are structured for short term funding

of premium Assistance. The funding policy sets contribution rates necessary

to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third fiscal year after

the actuarial valuition date. The Premium Assistance account is funded to

establish reserves that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance

benefits for each succeeding year. Due to the short term funding policy, the

OpEB plan's fiduciary net position was not projecled to be sufficient to meet

projected future benefit payments, therefore the plan is considered a "pay-as-

you-go" plan. A discount rate of 4.09o/o which represents the S&P 20 year

furn[ip"i Bond Rate at June 30, 2022, was applied to all projected benefit

payments to measure the total OPEB liability.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

3. Actuarial Assumptions - continued

Sensitivitv of the m Net OPEB Liabilitv to Chanqe in Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in
annual Premium Assistance. As of June 30, 2022, retirees Premium

Assistance benefits are not subject to future healthcare cost increases. The
annual Premium Assistance reimbursement for qualifying retirees is capped at

a maximum of $1,200. As of June 30, 2022, 93,293 retirees were receiving

the maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per year. As of June 30, 2022, 582
members were receiving less than the maximum amount allowed of $1,200
per year. The actual number of retirees receiving less than the $1,200 per
year cap is a small percentage of the total population and has a minimal
impact on Healthcare Cost Trends as depicted below.

The following presents the System net OPEB liability for June 30, 2022,
calculated using current Healthcare cost trends as well as what the System
net OPEB liability would be if it health cost trends were 1-percentage point

lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease
Current

Trend Rate 1% lncrease

System net OPEB liability $ 1,255,000 $ 1,255,000 $ 1,255,000

Sensitivitv of the District's proportion share of the net OP B liabilitv to
chanoes in the discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount
rate of 4.09o/o, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (3.09%) or

1-percentage-point higher (5.09%)than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%

Decrease Rate lncrease
3.O9o/o 4.O9o/o 5.09%

Districts proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $

77
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 16 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS) - continued

3. Actuarial Assumptions - continued

OPEB plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about PSERS'fiduciary net position is available in PSERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's
website at www. psers. oa.qov.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

The District has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to
the balance sheet date of June 30, 2023 for items that should potentially be
recognized or disclosed in these financial statements. The evaluation was
conducted through January 31,2024, the date these financial statements were
available to be issued
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1. Auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Pine

Grove Area School District.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are

reported in the Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control over Financial

Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Aud itinq Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Pine Grove

Area School District were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs is reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to

Each Major Program and lnternal Control over Compliance required by the Uniform

Guidance.

2

4.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Pine

Grove Area School District expresses an unqualified opinion'

6. There was one audit finding relative to the major federal programs for the Pine Grove
Area School District that is to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section

200.519(a).

7. The program tested as a major program included:

ram CFDA #
Ed ucation Stabilization Fund 84.425

8. The threshold for distinguishing types A and B Programs was $750,000.

g. Pine Grove Area School District was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
None
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD
PROGRAMS AUDIT - continued

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

2023-0l Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund ll Assistance
Listing No. 84.425; Year Ended June 30,2023.

Criteria and Condition: The District is required to maintain a system for accumulating
and reporting expenditures incurred of its' grant awards. This includes filing the
Reconciliation of Cash on Hand Quarterly Reports for each Grant which requires them.
The District must report actual grant expenditures incurred thru the applicable report
date. The District did not accurately file the required report for the Quarter Ended June
30,2023.

Context: Our test of the Quarterly Cash Reports for the Quarter ended June 30, 2023
indicated the District did not file the required report.

Cause: The inaccurate filing of the required report appears to have been caused by an
oversight and failure of the Federal Program Coordinator to correspond with the Business
Office with any changes to the subledger with the District General Ledger.

Effect: The project incurred expenditures and cash position thru June 30,2023 were not
reported to PDE as required.

Questi oned Cosfs.' None

Recommendation: We recommended that the District properly utilize their CSIU
accounting system to accumulate the costs incurred and that the required reports be

accurately filed.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Once notified by us

the District immediately established the proper account structure in its accounting system
to gather the program expenditures to properly and timely file the required reports. The
Business Manager also implemented new procedures to gather and review costs

charged. to the applicable federal grant so as to properly and timely file the required
reports.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2023

Pa$ Thrcugh
G€nloB'
Number

PrcqEm
or

Amount

G€nt Period
Beinning/Endinq

Date

Total
Re@ived
ForYearFedeEl Gtanlor/ Pa$ Thrcwh GEntor/

Prmrem Tille

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION
Pas*d Thrcuqh Sft Department of Edudion:

E.S,E.A.'l-Itle I - 2021-2022
E.S.E.A. Tille I - 2022-2023
E.S.E.A. Trtle ll lmpovino Teacher Qualitv - 2021-2022
E-S.E.A. Tltte ll lmprovinq TeacherQualitv - 2022-2023

E.S.E.A. Title lV Student Support Enrichmenl - 2021-2022

E.S-E.A. Titte lV studer( suDmrt Enrichmeni - 2022-2023

Elementary and Se@ndarv School Emergenq Relief GSSER ll) - 202G2021

AmerienResoePlan.ElementarvandseondarYschoolEmenencYRelief(ARPESSER).20202021
Anerien Rescue Ptan - Elementary and se@ndary school EmercencY Relief- Homels children and Yodh

Amefi€nResoePlan-ElememarvandSe@ndarySc}loolEmenencYRelief(ARPESSER)(EssERT%conglidateo

Pased Through schuylkill County lntemediate Unit:

Special Educalion - G€nts to Stat6 0DEA)
Special Edu€tion - G€nts to States (IDEA)

Smcial Education - Pre$h@l GGnts (IDEA)

Srecial Edu@tion - Prc$hool Grants (IDEA)

Sredal Edu€lion - GEnts to States (ARP Supplemeilal IDEA)

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pa$ed Through Sbte Departmeff of Human Setrices:
Medi€lAsislan@ - A@$
Medi€l A$is1an@ - A@s

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Pasd Through Shte Department of Educdion:

National School Lunch - 2022-2023
National School Lunch - 2022-2023
PEBT AdminislGtive Funds - 202-2023
School Brcakf as1 PmE m' 2O2-2O23
School BreaKast PmEm - 2022-2023

Passd Through State Depaffient of Agricuttuc:
Nalional School Llnch (Value of USDA Commodities)

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

SUB.TOTAL

STATE AWARD EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Source Code Leoend:
(D) lndi€tes direcl tede€l financial asislan@ fundino.
(l) lndi€tes indited fede€l financial a$istan@ tunding.
(S) lndietes Slate matchinq fundino.
(CV) lndic€les Coronavirus Furdinq

Fedenl Ctuster Code Leoend:
(SE) Indicates SFcial Edu€tion clusler
(CN lndi€tes Child Nutrilion Clusler

Fede€l Fdd
SouG CFDA clLM
cde Number @

A@rued Or
(Defered)
Revenue

Julv 1,2022
Revenue

Re@nized

A@ed or
(Defered)
Revenue

ExFndilurcs June 30,2023

0)
0)
0)
0)
fl)
0)

0y(cV)
0y(cv)
0Y(cv)
0y(cV)

84.01 0
84.010
84.367
84-367
84.424
u.424

84.425D
u.425U
a4.425W
u.425U

93-778

317.794
47.630
47.610
24,787
25,278

1,217.134
2.461.919

13.678
191.347

234.005 S

1E1.601
33.995
26,858
'17.709

13.?61
2E3.055
447.62.

3.507
38.269

234.005 5
0

33.995
0

17.709
0

476,724
(69.991)

0
0

0$
317.794

0
47,610

0

598.882
880.874

394
1 1 1.660

0
1 36.1 93

0
20,752

0
1 1.517

792.555
363.261

(3.113)

73.591

01'22-0338
01 9230338
D2G'22-O338
02e23-0336
1e2-O334
14+210338
200-21-0338
22}21-0338
1At21-234'l
2r2'l-0338

07t1t2t-o9t30t2 g
oThm-o980123
07ht2't-09Bom
o7t1t2-o9130123
07 t1 t21-09F0122
07t1t22-09l30123

o3t13t2GO9l30t23
03t13n0-o9F0124
07t01t2G09EOl24
o3t13t21-0913F,/23

0
317.794

0
47,610

0
25.274

59E.882
880.874

394
11 1.E60

0)
0)
0)
0)
0)

0)
(s)
0)
0)
{s)

0)

84.027
u.o27
u.173
84.1 73
u.027

62-22-0029
62-2}0029
62-22-0029
62-2UOO29
62-2-0029

07n12'l-680122
07t01t2-o680r23
07 tun149l30l22
07 n1 D2-09130123
07 n1 n1 -09/30122

21.67
232324

4,038
4.5S9

55.844

21.267
0

4.038
0

0

0
4,599

55,844

2,275,63

0
0
0
0

1,394,756

(sE)
(sE)
(so
(so
(SE)

221.ft7

4.038
4.599

55.844

5,193,469

5,968 07lO1n1-O6BOl2.
07lo1m-6Bol23

9,899

0

0
232328

0
4,599

s5.844

1.798,458 917,751 2,275,463

0)
0)

013-1 1-0338
01$1 1-0338

3,358
1,866

5,24

0

3,358

0
2,065

2,065

00
3-931 3,931

3,931 3.931

10.s55

10.649
10.553

N/A

(cto

{cM

(cto

129.54-60S3
12$5440G3
I 29.54400"3
12+54-600-3
12+54€0$3

469.006
22.702

628
105.138
?8.795

oT tum-o6B0n3
07t01t22-c6.130123
07rc1m-cF.a0t23
07t01t22-6BOn3
07tov22-c6,130t23

469,006
2.702

624
105.138
78.795

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

469.006

62E
'105,13E

78.795

469.006

628
105.13E
78.795

10.555 2-07-s4€80 51.463 o7to1t22s3on3 A) .53.919 G) (10491) 
=:1.199 

(c) s1'463 (D)--ig',l+
727,732 ----72s,6n ---f1ol61) 

-727'732 

7n'n2 (12'346)

1r31joo -2"5332,, --T10,6 - 3'0071F -3"00716- --1.38!.AT

101,497 101'497 o 101'497 101'497

$ 5.829,603 $ 2431.802 S 910648 $ 2905629 $ 2905629 $ 1384475

Other Coal,e Leoend:
(A) lndicates vatue of USDA @mmodilies re@ived in curent veat
(B) lndicates beinninq inventory value of USDA @mmodhies.
(C) lndi€tes value of USDA @mmodities used in drent vear
(D) lndi€tes ending inventorv value of USDA @mmoditis.

*lGbiffiasb1ffiN
6bh arc en id€Bl Fd dbb s@md
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 1 . SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 2 . COMMODITIES:

The beginning and ending deferred income figures listed represent the beginning
and ending commodities inventories in the Cafeteria Fund. These commodities
are received through the State from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The
commodities are valued at amounts assigned to the various items by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture when the commodities are offered.

NOTE3-INDIRECTGOSTS:

The district did not charge any indirect costs to any of the federal grants and
programs during this fiscal year. As such, the District did not use the 10% de
minimis cost rate.

NOTE 4 - CLUSTER PROGRAMS:

The following CFDAs have been deemed a cluster of programs by the Office of
Management and Budget and, therefore, are treated as one program in

determining the major programs to be audited.

Child Nutrition Cluster
CFDA # Expenditures

Special Education
Cluster (IDEA)

CFDA# Expenditures
84.027
84.173
Total

$ 288,172
4 599

10.553
10.555
Total

1 05,1 38
520,469

$

$ 625,6Q7 $ ____2ezJlJ_

NOTE 5 - MEDICAL ASSISTANCE:

Access reimbursements received under CFDA #93.778 Revenue Code 8810 are
classified as fee-for-service revenues and are not recognized as federal awards
for the purpose of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

The District accepts and acknowledges that the Quarterly Cash Reports for the Quarter ended
June 30, 2023 were not correct in their entirety. The error occurred due to miscommunication
between the Federal Programs Coordinator (who was also the Director of Curriculum at that time
who is no longer employed in the District) and the Business Administrator. ln order to appropriately
and completely expend various streams of ESSERs funding, the Curriculum Director revised his
budget multiple times, moving expenditures that were originally budgeted to be expended from one
grant to another grant. Although all the Federal funding received was expended on qualifying and
appropriate expenditures, the failure occurred when the former Federal Programs Coordinator did
not inform the Business Manager that he was making these numerous budget adjustments. As such,
the final Quarterly Cash Reports as of June 30, 2023 were filed with incorrect amounts.

Corrective Actions: Prior to the local audit as of 6130123, the Business Manager and new Federal
Programs Coordinator (who is also the new Curriculum Director) identified that the budget transfers
discussed above were not communicated properly. lt was also determined that all expenditures
charged against the grants were appropriate and allowed. ln order to prevent this from occurring
again in the future, the Business Manager and Federal Programs Coordinator now meet monthly to
discuss the status of all Federal Funding, to discuss any and all planned expenditures to ascertain
their allowability and to ensure compliance under the Federal Grants, and to verify that the Federal
Program Coordinator's internal budget exactly matches what is recorded in the District's accounting
system.

103 SCHOOL STREET PINE GROVE, PA 17963-1698
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICTS PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILIry

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2023

DISTRICTS PROPORTION OF THE NET PENSION

LlABrLrw (AssET)

DISTRICTS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LlABlLlrY (ASSET)

DISTRICTS COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

DISTRICTS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AS A PERCENTAGE

OF ITS COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A PERCENTAGE

OF THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

June 30, June 30,
2021 2020

0.0689% 0.07'160/o

June 30,
2022

June 30,
20'19

0.0702%

June 30,
2014

June 30,
2017

O.O7O3o/o

June 30,
2016

O.O7260/o

June 30,
2015

O.O741o/o

June 30,
2014

June 30,
2013

0.0689%

$ 28,205,000

$ 8,841,282

319.01%

54.49o/o

o.06,92% 0.07060/o

$ 35,978,000 $ 32,097,000 $ 27'944'000

$ 9,404,8s4 $ 9,532,929 $ 9,011'116

0.6820%

$ 30,321,000 $ 28,288,000

$ 10,032,494 $ 9,768,782

$ 35,255,000 $ 32,841,000

$ 10,060,337 $ 9,687,820

$ 33,219,000

$ 9,313,261

$ 34,720,000

$ 9,358,282

3O2.23o/o 289.8% 35O.44o/o 338.99% 356.68% 371.O1% 382.55Yo 336.70%

50.140k 54.360/o

310.10%

52.24o/o
61.34o/o 54.32Yo 54.32o/o 55.660/o 54.OOo/o

See notes to financial statements

which are an integral part ofthis statement.

u

51.84o/o



June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

$ 330oJ0s $ 3273J85

PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

June 30,
2020

June 30, June 30,

$ 3,343,748 $
2019

3,144,000
2014

2,936,000

June 30,
20'17

June 30,
2016-z3lopoo--

$

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014

1,913,000 $ 1,406,000CONTRACTUALLY REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION

CONTRIBUTIONS IN RELATION TO THE CONTRACTUALLY
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION

GoNTRTBUTTON DEFTCIENCY (EXCESS)

DISTRICTS COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

CONTRIBUTIONS AS A PERCENTAGE OF
COVERED.EII'IPLOYEE PAYROLL

(3,400,109) (3,273,185\

$____q_

$ 9,768,782

(3,343,748)

$________q_ $

$ 10,060,337 $

(3,144,000)

I,e87,820

(2,936,000)

$ _____q_

$ 9,313,261

$ 00

$ 2,689,000 $ $

(2,689,000) (2,310,000) (1,913,000) (1,406,000)

$_________9_ $_________!_ $__!_ $_________9_

$ 9,358,282 $ 9,404,854 $ 9,532,929 $ 9,011,',|16$ 10,032,494

33.89% 33.s1% 33.24o/o 32.45o/o 31.52o/o 28.74o/o 24.560/o 24.58o/o 20.O7o/o

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS ' OPEB

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2023

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30' June 30'

,-i*,};- $-i#- $-#- r-#- r--ffi- r-#-
CONTRACTUALLY REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION

CONTRIBUTIONS IN RELATION TO THE CONTRACTUALLY

REOUIRED CONTRIBUTION

CoNTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (EXCESS)

DISTRICT'S COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

CONTRIBUTIONS AS A PERCENTAGE OF

COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

^-------' "-------n (--------q $--------q $------q $-------9-

$ 9,255,704 $ 8,983,234 $ 8,983'234 $ 8,626,890 $ 8'626'890 $ 8',o10'119

N/A N/A

See notes to linancial statements

whlch ar€ an integral part of this statement'
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N/A N/A N/A N/A

urtimatery, this schedure shourd present information for the last ten years. However, untilten years of information can be compiled, information is presented for as

many years as is available.



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2023

Juns 30, Juno 30,
2023 2022

June 30, June 30, June 30'
2021 2020 2019

June 30,
2018

DISTRICT'S PROPORTION OF THE NET OPEB
LrABtLtrY (ASSETI

DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)

DISTRICT'S COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

DISTRICTS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

OPEB LIABILIW (ASSET) AS A PERCENTAGE
OF ITS COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A PERCENTAGE
OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILIW

$ 2,708,213

$ 9,255,704

29.26%

$ 3,822,441 $

s 8,983,234 S

4,152,528

8,983,234

$ 3,702,410

$ 8,626,890

42.92Yn

s 4,101,045 $

$ 8,626,890 $

3,799,898

8,010,119

42.55% 46.23%

N/A

47.54% 47.44%

N/AN/A N/A N/A N/A

available.

See notes to tinancial statements
which are an integral part of this statement'
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL OISTRICT

SCHEOULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS . OPEB-PSERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

CONTRACTUALLY REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION

CONTRIBUTIONS IN RELATION TO THE CONTRACTUALLY
REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION

coNTRTBUTTON DEFTCIENCY (EXCESSI

DISTRICT'S COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

$- sopoo $ 80p60-- $- 84p06- $- 8o,ooo $----77300 $--- 78poo

(80,000) (80,000) (84,000) (80,000) (77,000) (78,000)

$____g $________g $__________q_ $_________q_ $___------g- $_--------9-

$ 10,032,494 $ 9,768,782 $ 10,060,337 $ 9,687,820 $ 9,313,261 $ 9,358,282

CONTRIBUTIONS AS A PERCENTAGE OF
COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 0.800/o 0.820/o 0.830/o 0.830/o 0.830/o 0.830/o

as is avallable.

See notes to financial statoments

which are an integral part of this statement.
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SCHEOULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET OPEB.PSERS LIABILITY

PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

DISTRICT'S PROPORTION OF THE NET OPEB. PSERS
LrABrLrrY (ASSET)

DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
oPEB - PSERS LtABtL|TY (ASSET)

DISTRICT'S COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
OPEB - PSERS LIABILITY (ASSET) AS A PERCENTAGE
OF ITS COVERED.EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

June 30,
2022

$ 1,255,000

$ 10,032,494

12.51o/o

6.86%

Juno 30,
2021

June 30,
2020

$ 1,549,000 $

$ 10,060,337 $

June 30,
2019

1,493,000

9,687,820

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

$ 1,432,000 $

$ 9,358,282 $

June 30,
2016

1,564,000

9,404,854

$ '1,633,000

$ 9,768,782

$ 1,443,000

$ 9,313,261

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A PERCENTAGE
OF THE TOTAL OPEB . PSERS LIABILITY

'l'6.72o/o

5.300/o

15.400k

5.690/o

15.41o/o

5.560/o

15.49o/o

5.560/o

15.30%

5.73Yo

16.62%

5.470/o

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part ofthis statement.
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